United Nations Nations Unies

ECONOMIC CONSEIL UNRESTRICTED
AND ECONOMIQUE ¥ !{ CN.4 /2R Lg
SOCIAL COUNCIL ET SOCIAL 14 Juns 19
ORIGINAL; ENGLICH

COQMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS
Third Seesicn
CUMARY RECORD COF THE SIXTY-SIXTH MEETING

Held at Leke Success, New York
on Vednesday, 9 June 194¢, at 2.3C p.m.

Chairmun:  irs. Franklin D. ROOSEVELT United States of America
Rapporteur: Mr., MALIK Lebanon
Memhero: Mr. HOOD Australia
T M. IEBUAU Belgium
Mr. STEPANENKO Byelorussian Soviet
Socialist Republic
Mr. LARRAIN Chile
Mr, WU China
Mr. LOUTFI Eaypt
Mr. .CASS1IN France
Mrs. MEHTA India
Mr. QUIJANO Panama
Mr. LOPEZ Philippines
Mr. KLEKOVKIN Ukrainian Soviet Socialist
Republic
Mr. PAVLOV Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics
Vr, WILLON United Kingdom
Mr. FOMTATIA Uruguay
Mr, VILIFAN Yugoslavia

Aleo Prescnt:

Mre. LEDON Representative of the
Ccmmission on the Status
of Viomen

Any corrections of thie record should be submitted in writing, in either
of the working languages (English or French), and within twenty-four hours,
to Mr. E. Delevenay, Director, Official Records Division, Room CC-119, Leke
Success. Corrections should be accompanied by or incorporated in a letter,
on headed notepaper, bearing the appropriate symbol number and enclosed in an
envelope marked "Urgent". Corrections can be dealt with more speedily by the
tervices concerned if delegations will be good enough to incorporate them in
& mimeooraphed copy of the record.



E/CN.4 /SR.66
Page 2

Reprecentatiyes of Specialized Agencies:

Mr., METALL Internatioral Labour Organization
Mr. 'LEDAR United Nations Educational, Scientifi.
and Cultural Organization

Consultants from Non-Govermmental Organizations:

Miss SENDER American Federation of labor (AF of L)}

Mr., DRANNAN Catholic International Union for
Social Service

Mr., Van ISTENDAEL International Federation of Christian
Trade Unions (IFCTU)

Mise SCHAEFER ‘ International Union cf Catholic Vomene

Leagues

Dr. ROBB Liaison Committee of Womens Internatic.
Organizations »

Dr . BIENENFELD World Jewish Congress

Secretariat:
Dr. HUMPHREY Director, Division of Human Rights

Mr. E. LAWSON Secretary of the Commission

CONTINUATION OF THE CONSIDERATION OF THE DRAFT INTERNATIONAL DECLARATION
ON HUMAN RIGHTS, SUBMITTED BY THE DRAFTING COMMITTEE (Annex ‘A of Document
E/CN .4 /95)

The CHAIRMAN drew attention to the text of Article 23 submitted
by the drafting sub-committee. (E/CN.h/114)

She poinﬁed out that the words "of his own choioe" in paragraph 3 had
teen placed in parenthesis, as the sub-committee had been unable to agres
upon their inclusion, Certain members had contended that the wérds "every-
one is free to form or Jjoin trade unions" already implied that the individual
was free to choéee,the trade union, but the United States delegation wished

to retain the words "of his own choice" for the sake of clarity.

Mr. WILSON (United Kingdom) warned the Commission of the danger
of putting more in the article than was necessary. The words "of his own
choice” would imply that any individual would Join any trade union, which
would only increesee the difficulties of demarcation which elready existed

among the different trade unions.

/He added



E/cN .k /SR .66
Page 3

X He edded that the United Kinglom delegatlon considered the whole
paragreph unnecessary if the Commidsion wished to retain 1t, however, it

should make sure that no miesleading statements were included.

Mr. MALIK (Lebanon) asked why the sub-committee had in that
instence departed from the formula "everyone has the right,..", and had

sub: tituted "everyone 18 free...".

Mre. MEHTA (India) explained that “everyone is free...” left it

to the individual to decide whether or not he wished to Join a trade union.

Mr. LEBEAU (Belgium) supported the explanation given by the
Indian representative; it vas not only a question of the right of the
individual to Join a trade union, dut aleo his right not to Join. The
present text made that abundantly clear, and in his opinion the words "of

his own choice" were redundant.

The CHAIRMAN, speaking as the representative of the United States
of America, withdrew the words "of his own choice", in order to simplify

the voting.

Mr. LOUTFI (Egypt) declared his intention not to vote for
paragraph 3, which he considered superflucus, since the right to freedom

of association was already given in Article 1&,

Mr. MALIK (Lebanon) asked why the sub-committee had singled out
trade union association for separate mention, when freedom of association

vas already covered in Article 18,

The CHAIRMAN explained that the United States delegation considered
that the right to form and join trade unions wae an essential element of
freedom. While other associations had long enj)oyed recognition, trade unions
had met with much orposition and it was only recently that they had become

80 accepted form of association. The struggle was, in fact, still

Jcontinuing,



E/CN.b4 /SR .66
Page U

continuing, and her delegation thought, therefore, that specific nention

should be mads of trade unions.

Mr. FONTAINA (Uruguay) agreed with the representative of Euypt
that paragraph 3 was superfluous, as the matter was already covered by
freedor: of association in Article 18. He would not, however, be able to
vote against the paragraph, having voted for freedom of association. If
it were to be retained, it should be interpreted as meaning that individuals
were not only free to join, but also not to join trade unioms.

Mr. Fontaina understood why the USSR representative, who had only seen
USSR trade unions, could not imagine any worker wishing to remain outeide a
trade union, for a USSR worker who left his trade union would have no work.
Uruguay, however, among other countries, had many trade unions, which could
be roughly classified into two politicelly opposed categories: those with
a socialist trend, and those with a communist trend. Mr. Fontaina cited
a case in his country where a socialist trade union had promoted a strike for
an increase of pay; when the increase was obtained for all workers, whether
members of the socialist or communist trade union, the communist trade union
had organized a strike for a further increase, with the result that the
factory in question had closed and all had suffered from a long period of
unemployment. In view of such cases, it was essential that the right to joi

trade unions should be accompanied by the right not to join.

The CHAIRMAN recalled that when Article 19 had been considered,
the suggestion to include trade unions in it had been decided against.
Several members had supported that decision on the assumption that specific me
tion of trade unions would Be made in Article 23.

It was understood that the words '"everyone ie free to form or Join
trade unions" left individuals free not to Join.

The Commission approved paragraph 3 of Article 23 by twelve votes,

with four abstentions.

/Paregraph 4:




E/CN.4/SR.66
Papge 5

Peragraph 4: "Women shall work with the same advantages as mon arnd

receive equal pay for equal work."

The CIAIRMAN, epeaking ae the representative of the United Statee
of America, expressed her strong support for the principle of equal pay for
equal work, which was widely observed in the United States, vhere many
States had equal pay laws on their Statute Books. She felt, however, that
there wat no need for a specific provision in the Declaration, since the
principle was adequately covered by the provision against discrimination in
Article 3, and_paragraph 1 spoke of "Just and favourable conditions of work
and pay". Moreover, she disagreed with the phrase "with the same advantages’

since there were umany fields of work in which women required special advantarg,

Mre. MEBTA (India) explained that only two members of the sub-
committee had vished'to include the paragraph in question.
" For her part, she would vote against it, as she had explained at an
earlier meeting. To make & specific reference to women in the article would
give rise to the impression that women did not have the same rights in other

matters where they were not specifically mentioned,

Mr. LARRAIN (Chile) recalled that when the Economjc and Social

Council at its last session had considered the proposal concerning equal
ray for equal work submitted by the World Federation of Trade Unions and
supported by the French and many Latin American delegatione, Chile had
supported the proposal wholeheartedly, pointing out that equal pay would
be no innovation in Chile, where the principle was already applied in
various fielde of activity. The Council had adopted a resolution referring
the problem to the International Labour Organization and calling upon all
~ Member States to implement the principle,

In view of the Council's action, the delegation of Chile felt it was
right and proper to refer to the principle in Article 23. Since there
vwere, however objections to the specific mention of women, Mr, larrain

/Propoled



E/CN.k /SR.66
Page 6

proposed that the following text might be more acceptable:

"Everyoneis entitled to receive equal pay for equal work.,”

Mr. STEPANENKO (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic) expressed
his astonishment that the representative of India, herself a woman, was
opposed to paragraph 4. The importance of such a provision was peramount,
in view of the fact that women had been discriminated against in the matter
of pay almost more than in any other. Moreover, the Commission on the Status
of Women had adopted a resolution, requesting that the Declaration should
contain a provision with regard to equal pay for equal work.

The provision had been included in thetext adopted at the second session
of the Commiseion and in the text of the Drafting Committee, and it was
not right to ask for its exclusion now. As the representative of Chile had
pointed out, the Economic and Social Council had passed a resolution on the
subject, and in Mr. Stepanenko's opinion the Commission was bound to include

such a provision i the Declaration.

Mr. WILSON (United Kingdom) declared that, in spite of the
arguments of the Byeloruesian reprcsentative, he would be guided by the

views of the two women members of the Commission.

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) felt that

paragraph 4 was of great importance, In many countries women were paid
les:c than men for the same work -- a particular form of diecrimination which
could not be ignored in the Declaration. The fact that "Jjust and favourable
conditions of work and pay" were mentioned in paragraph 1 would be no safe-
guard, since employers might consider it Just to pay women less for the same
vork. |

Mr, Pavlov suggested that the following text might prove more acceptable
to the majority of the Commission:

/™omen shall enjoy



E/CN.4 /SR.66
Page 7

"Jomen shall enjoy no less advantages than men in work and

shall receive equel pay for equal work."

M. CASSIN (France) thought paragraph 4 had its uses, since the
matter was not entirely covered by the provision againet discrimination in
Article 3, which had no pover to regulate relations between employer and
employee .,

He would favour the principle of the text adopted at the second session,

with the amendment proposed by the USSR representative.

Mcs. MERTA (India) reiterated her conviction that any specific
mention of women in the article would only weaken the position of women;
there were many other fields in which there was discrimination against
vomen, but nowhere else did the Declaration make specific mention of women,

it being understood that "everyone" included women.,

Mrs. LEDON (Commission on the Status of Women), on behalf of her
Commission, which represented all the women of the world, urged the adoption
of paragraph 4. The argument that the question of equal ray for equal work
wae covered by the general provision in paragraph 1 was not correct, since

the Declaration did not specify what were "Jjust and favourable conditions
of work and pay".

Human beings must first be able to live; the standard of iiving
capended upon work and its renumeration, The question of equal pay was
therefore vital for women,

In conclueion, Mre. Ledon appealed to the sense of justice of the
members of the Commission, urging them to support that paragraph in order

to improve the position of women throughout the world,

Mr. LOPEZ (Philippines) stated that he had previously obJjected
to tshe wording of the first part of the provision, as he had thought it
vas open to misinterpretation. With the first part now amended by the

/USSR representati



E/CF.bL /SR.66
rage O

USSR representative, he could support paragraph L. Paragraph 1 was not
enough, since the criterion of what "Just and favourable” would be determined
by eontracts between the employer and emplcyee. Paragraph 4 would in no
vay be redundant, for 1t introduced a new idea which was not contained

in the rest of the article.

Mr. HOOD (Australias) supported the alternative text proposed by
the representative of Chile, since it disposed of the obJection, which he
shared, tc the specific mention of women. Moreover, 1t stated a principle
which was not clearly enunciated in paragraph 1, wherein "Just and favourable"
referred to the conditions of work of individuals and did not cover the

relations of individuals to one another.

Mr. WU (China) also supported the text proposed by the
repre3sentative of Chile, which he thought would cover the obJjection raised

by the representative of Indla,

Mr. CASSIN (France) urged members not to allow discrimination
to continue, simply because they were afraid of words and preferred abeiract
amendments. The French delegation had considered the question very
seriously and would support the original provision, since it considered

-t more important to defend women than to defend words.

Mr. WU (China) wished to make 1t clear that his delegation d1d
not objJect to the mention of wemen, and was gulltless of any attempt to use
vague and abetract words. The broader statement of the Chilean representa-
tive, however, stated an important principle which had not hitherto found
1ts place in the Declaration, and which the Chinese delegation was glad to

support.

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) had no fault
to find with the Chilean text, save that it was not sufficlently specific.

/If that could



E/CN.4 /SR.66
Page 9

If that could be corrected, he would BYe willing to support it. He proposed
that it should be amended to read:
"Everyone, regardless of race, nationality or s«x, is entitled
to’'equal pay for equal work.”
That would cover discrimination against women, and also discrimination
againet coloured workers as compared tovhite, colonial workers as compared

to those of metropolitan Powers, etc.

Mr. LARRAIN (Chile) explained that his sole desire had been to
enunciate the principle clearly, yet in such a way that the paragraph would

not e rejlected. He would accept the USSR amendment.

Mr. WILSON (United Kingdcm) pointed out that although the
Commission had started by discussing equal pay for men and women, a separate
~rinciple had now developed. He had nothing against the principle of
equal pay for equal work, but it was a wide sudbJect which entered into the
matter of family responsibilities and which would involve an examination
of the wage structure in various countries. Moreover, if that one principle

vers to be emphasized, it would throw the whole Declaration out of balance.

Mr. PAVLCV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) stressed that
the vital interests of the working pecple were concerned in the question
of equal pay for equal work, and the workimg woman must be protected from
discrimination.
The whole question of wages was not & question of pay for work, but
rather of pay in accordance with the requirements of the individual, Modern
society, unfortunately, could not yet achieve that, but at least it could

do xway with the injustice suffered by women, coloured races, national

minorities etc.

Mr. FONTAINA (Uruguay) declared that the very arguments of the
USSR representative indicated the vast nature of the subject, for if the
Principle of-equal pay for equal workwre to be enlarged upon, it would

/be necessary



E/CN.4 /SR.66
Fuge 10

be necessary to mention every possible ground for discrimination. The
Chilean text, on the other hand, referred to the principle of egual pay
for equal work for "everyone", which included men and women, and rendered

the USSR amendment unnecessary.
Mr. LOUTFI (Egypt) moved the closure of the debate.

Mr. (UIJANO (Panama) asked the Chairman to put paragraph 4
to the vote in two parts, the first part to be: "Everyone regardless
of race, naticnality and sex".

TLe Commission rejected the first part of paragraph Ui of

Article 23, by eight votes to five, with four abstentionms,

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote paragraph 4 in the following
text: "Everyone 1s entitled to receive equal pay for equal work.®

The Commission approved paragrarh & of Article 23 by ten votes

to three with four abstentions.

/Mr ., CASSIN



E/CN.4/SR.66
Page 11

Mr. CASSIN (France) eaid he had voted against the text "Everyone
1e entitled to receive equal pay for equel work" because he considercd that
not only wae such an abstract formula very dangerous, but its interpretation

would give rise to serious problems .

Mr. FONTAINA(Uruguay) suggested that peragraph 4 should become

paragraph 2.

Mr. LOPEZ (Philippines) coneidered that the suggested new paragraph

2 should begin with the word "Women".

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Boviet Socialist Republiecs) regretted the
edoption of a wording for paragraph 4 of Article 23 which did not include
mention of "equality regerdlese of eex."

The Committes decided by eight votes to none with eight abstentions

that paragraph 4 of Article 23 should bec ome paragraph 2.

The CHAIRMAN put Article 23, reading es follows, to the vote:

"1. Everyone has the right to just and favourable conditions
of work end pay and to protection againet unemployment.

"2. Evoryone 1s entitled to receive equal pay for equal work.

"3, Everyone ies free to form or join trade unions for the
protection of his interests."

The Commiseion adopted by eight votes to three with five abatentions

the text of Article 23 as amended.

CONSIDFRATION OF THE REPORT OF THE IRAFTING COMMITTEE. (document E/CN.L/95)
(Continuation of discuseion) :

Article 24

Mr. PAVILOV (Union of Soviet Sociallst Republics) considered that
Article 24 was covered by Article 23.
After a brief diecussion, the CHATRMAN put to the vote & proposal

that the Drafting Sub-Committee should be requested to draft a separate

Article 24,
/The propoeal




E/CN.L/SR.66
Page 12

The proposal was adopted by eleven votes to none with five ebstentions.

Articles 295 end 26

The CHATRMAN pointed out that the India/United Kingdom joint
proposal (document E/CN.1/99) suggested the amalgamation of Articles 25
end 26, and that the delegation of China had proposed that Article 23 - 29

ghould be emalgemated (document E/CN..4/102).

Mrs. MEHTA (India) suggested the insertion in the joint India/
United Kingdom proposal of & new paragraph reading &s follows:

"Mothers and children shall be granted special care and
aseistance.", to which Mr. WILSON (United Kingdom)seid he was not opposed.

He d1d not however wish to be committed to that exact wording.

Replying to Mr. LEBEAU (Belgium), who asked whether the words
"gecurity in the event of unemployment", need be retained in the India/
United Kingdom draft &s protection againet uwuemployment wae provided for
in Article 23, Mr. WILSON (United Kingdom)said he would prefer their

retention.

Mr. CASSIN (France) pointed out that the amendments suggeeted
by his delegation (document E/CN.:4/82/Add.8) were submitted as emendments to
the text adopted at the second seseion, but as the Lebanese amendment to
raragraph 1 of Article 23 had been adopted that morning, he would not
press the French amendment to Article 25. He supported the retantion of
the worde "security in the event of unemployment" in the Jjoint India/
United Kingdom text, and suggested the addition of a new paragraph referring
to the right of everyone to an adequate standard of living. He agreed with

tle representative of India's proposed amendmsnt.

Mrs. MEHTA (Indie) and Mr. WILSON (United Kingdcm) accepted the

amendment auggestéd by the represatative of France.
/Mr. STEPANENKO



E/CN.4/SR.66
Page 13

Mr. STEPANINKO (Byelcruselén Soviet Socimlist Republic) referring

to Article 26, said the questions of soc¢cial security etc., dealt with under
that Article were of great importance to workere throughout the world.
Pointing out that in some countriee workers who became unemployed because of
old age, 1llness, disability eotc., found themselves without any means of suppo:
he emphasized the fect that in his country all workers, without exception, wer
Insured against'such poaaibilitiee; end that the insurance contributions were
peid entirely by the employers. He disagreed with the practice followed in
cortdin countries whereby workers themselves were required to pay thelr shere
of the cost of social insurance.

Article 26 should contain more concrete uuavantees of social security

for the working man then were comntained in the India/United Kingdom text.

Replying to the CHAIRMAN, who asked what percentrge of his wages
a worker in Byeloruseie received in case of disability etc., Mr. STEPANENKO
(Byelorussien Soviet Socialist Republic) said thet such & worker received &
monthly allowance Based on the everage rate of pay for the number of years he

had been working.

The CHATRMAN, speaking as the representative of the United States
of Amerlca, wished to make the position of her delegation clear, and to
emy}.2eize that 1t supported the Indle/United Kingdom text for Articles 24 /26
in the bel'ef that that text stated the subetance of the original Articles
in a briefer anl better form. She suggested that the words "necessary
social services end" should be inserted before the word "security", in order
to make 1t clear that the term "social eecuriti" encompassed the right to

services as well as to economic protection.

Mr. HOOD (Australie) supported the Indie/United Kingdom text end
the amendment suggested by the Chairman. He proposed that the worde "and
to social services" should be added after the words "standard of living".

/Mr. LEBEAU



E/CN.4/SR.66
Page 1L

Mr. IEBFAU (Belgium), Mre. MEHTA (India) end Mr. WILSON (Unlted

Kingdom) also supported the amendment suggested by the Chairman.

Mr. WILSON (United Kingdom) suggested that the second part of the
text for Articles 2k - 26 ghould read:
"including security in the event of unemployment, disability, old
ege or other lack of livelihood in circumstances beyond his control,
and special care end assiestance for mothers and children.”

Mr. CASSIN (Frence), supported by Mr. MALIK (Lebanon) suggested that

the proposed text for Articles 24 - 26 should be divided into three sentences.

Mr. WILSON (United Kingdom) said he prefserred two eentences &nd

proposed that & Sub-Cormittee should be appointed to draft the Article.

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socimlist Republice) said that the India/
United Kingdom text omitted all reference to the right of the family to
e digniried standard of living, and the right of man to medical care and
ousing. The Declaration must contain cleuses emphe&sizing these rights, and
he asked the Drafting Sub-Committee to take his suggestions into coneidereation.
Referring to the high cost of medical aid and the lack of hospitals
and health centres in the United States of Americea, he pointed out that in
the Unicpg of Boviet Socialist Republics not only was all medicel aid
provided free of charge to workerse, but the hospital network system had been
increased five times and the number of physicians 500 per cent during the last
quarter of & century. Expenses 1n connection with the improvement of health
services were increasing yearly.
Streesing the right of man to adequate housing, he sald that in the
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics only one to four per cent of a workef's
earninge was spent on housing, whereas in certain other countries the

average spent on houeing was 30 per cent.

/The CHAIRMAN



E/@N.4/SR,.66
Page 15

The CHATRMAN seid the Drafting Sub-Committec would take into
account the euggestiono made by the representetive of the Union of Soviet
S-e’aliet Rerublica. Speaking as representative of the United States of
Amerioce ghe pointed out thet in that country the poor received free medical
aid, and that although the idea of soclalized medicine was not generally
accepted, ssveral hospltal inesurence schemes were being tried out. Tgken
on & basis of population she thought that there were more doctore in the
United States of America and morc hoapital beds than there were in the USSR.
She felt 1t would be most interesting if there was an exchange of medical
miseione between the United States of America and the Union of Soviet Sosielist
Tepublics. That exchange might prove to be a very profitable one and would
help greatly in the two countries' mutual knowledge of one enother. She

would 46 all in her power to arrangs for such & mission i1f the USSR repre-

sentative would reciprocate.

The meeting roee at 5.20 p.m,






